

CURRICULUM HANDBOOK



YEAR 9 | 2024

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Curriculum Information	4
Victorian Curriculum	5
General Capabilities	5
Cross-curriculum priorities	5
Standards for different years	5
Student Reports	6
Assessment Advice	6
Homework	6
Books/Class Sets/eBooks	7
Parent Payments	7
Learning and Resource Centre (LRC)	7
Communication With Parents	7
Careers/Work Experience	7
Managed Individual Pathways	8
Satisfactory Completion of the Middle School Program	8
English as an Additional Language (EAL)	8
Student Engagement in Learning for the Future (SELF)	8
SELECTION PROCESS FOR MIDDLE SCHOOL	9
middle school selection – STEP BY STEP	9
ENGLISH	10
YEAR 9 ENGLISH (COMPULSORY SUBJECT EXCEPT FOR EAL STUDENTS)	10
YEAR 9 ENGLISH AS AN ADDITIONAL LANGUAGE (EAL)	10
MATHEMATICS	11
YEAR 9 MATHEMATICS (COMPULSORY SUBJECT)	11
HEALTH & PHYSICAL EDUCATION	12
HIGH PERFORMANCE	12
MIND, BODY AND SOUL	12
HUMANITIES	13
YEAR 9 HUMANITIES (COMPULSORY SUBJECT)	13
SCIENCE	13

YEAR 9 SCIENCE (COMPULSORY SUBJECT)	
LANGUAGE & CULTURE	14
JAPANESE	14
ASIAN POP CULTURE	
TECHNOLOGY	15
COOL FOOD/HEALTHY BODY	15
DESIGNING IN FIBRES AND FABRICS	15
ELECTRONICS AND MECHANICS	15
PROGRAMMING AND COMPUTING	
SKATEBOARD AND TABLES	
THE ARTS	17
MEDIA STUDIES	
MUSIC PERFORMANCE AND INVESTIGATION	
ART	
DEVELOPING DRAMA	
VISUAL COMMUNICATION DESIGN	

CURRICULUM INFORMATION

The Middle School Curriculum at Lilydale Heights College is designed to maximise student achievement by:

- improving literacy and numeracy outcomes for all students at all levels of ability
- increasing every student's level of active engagement in learning across the school
- building students' capacity to become more independent, resilient, self-reflective learners
- allowing students to make choices and develop pathways to future learning
- developing initiative, teamwork and leadership
- developing productive school, community and global citizens.

Our curriculum provides a wide and engaging choice of subjects and enables students to extend and broaden their learning.

All students will study English, Mathematics, Science and Humanities throughout each year of Middle School in subjects that are designed to extend every student's learning based on their current strengths and abilities.

Students entering Middle School from Year 8 will select elective subjects and begin to plan a two-year program that reflects their talents and interests while preparing them for Senior School.

This handbook subjects that will allow the diversity of learners in Middle School to select subjects that cater for their talents, interests and needs. Within each subject, teachers will differentiate the learning to cater for the variety of student capabilities in the Middle School classroom, encouraging students to fully engage in learning and to achieve excellence.

At Lilydale Heights College, students are provided with a stimulating and challenging learning environment that encourages each student to take responsibility for their own learning. We aim to make learning active, purposeful and engaging. Learning is linked to existing knowledge and provides a bridge between the known and unknown.

Middle School consolidates and extends the skills and knowledge developed in Years 7 and 8, while also giving students the opportunity to make selections and pursue their interest areas. Enabling students to select subjects encourages them to explore, experiment and extend their educational development.

Core subjects completed by all Year 9 Students are:

- English
- Maths
- Science
- Humanities
- SELF

Elective subjects are chosen from the following faculties:

- Arts
- Health and Physical Education
- Language and Culture
- Technology

Every student in Middle School at Lilydale Heights College will have an individual program based on their skills, interests and aspirations.

If you have any queries regarding subject selection please contact:

Bryce Denny	Curriculum Leader
Ashlea Gell	Middle School Learning Leader
Emma Steeper	Senior School Learning Leader
Courtney Jordan	Careers Counsellor

VICTORIAN CURRICULUM

The Victorian F-10 Curriculum sets out the core knowledge, understanding, skills and general capabilities important for all Victorian students. It is based on the Australian Curriculum and it describes the learning entitlement of students as a foundation for their future learning, growth and active participation in the Australian community. It makes clear what all students should learn as they progress through schooling. It is the foundation for high quality teaching to meet the needs of all Victorian students.

GENERAL CAPABILITIES

General capabilities, a key dimension of the Victorian Curriculum, are developed through the content of the learning areas delivered by the Faculties. The general capabilities encompass the knowledge, skills, behaviours and dispositions that, together with curriculum content in each Faculty area and the cross-curriculum priorities, will assist students to live and work successfully in the twenty-first century.

The Victorian Curriculum includes four general capabilities:

- Critical and creative thinking
- Personal and social capability
- Ethical capability
- Intercultural capability

CROSS-CURRICULUM PRIORITIES

The following cross-curriculum priorities are embedded in all learning areas across the Faculties. They will have a strong but varying presence depending on their relevance to the learning in each Faculty area:

- Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander histories and cultures
- Asia and Australia's engagement with Asia
- Sustainability

STANDARDS FOR DIFFERENT YEARS

Each Standard describes what students are expected to know and be able to do at that level, and how well they should know and be able to do it. The Standards focus on the knowledge and skills of the student. Student behaviour is observed by teachers and included in student reports.

These levels are generally associated with the following year levels:

Level 7 – Year 7

Level 8 – Year 8

Level 9 – Year 9

Level 10 – Year 10

Standards are set at a challenging level, not minimum competence, to suit the age and developmental stages of students. This helps to ensure that students are stretched to learn, rather than doing work they find easy.

STUDENT REPORTS

Student reports will provide you with a snapshot of your child's progress.

Points to know about the reporting system:

- Parents will be provided with two reports per year through the Parent Portal
- Reports will rate your child's progress against state-wide standards
- Teachers also report on each student's achievement in Common Assessment Tasks in each subject
- Secondary students are expected to develop personal learning goals and review their progress towards these through the year

ASSESSMENT ADVICE

Assessment is the ongoing process of gathering, analysing and reflecting on students' work to make informed and consistent judgments to improve future student learning.

Assessment practices involve a range of measures and provide students with opportunities to display their knowledge, skills, understanding and attitudes. These assessment practices should be valid, reliable, fair and equitable, motivating students to further develop their learning.

Assessment practices can assist students to learn more effectively as they develop students' capacity to reflect on their learning, develop deeper understanding and encourage higher order thinking skills. Assessment for improved student learning and deep understanding requires a range of assessment practices to be used.

HOMEWORK

Homework is a reinforcement and extension of the learning that takes place in the classroom. Students are expected to develop sound study habits by undertaking a variety of planned homework tasks as well as self-motivated reading and revision.

Parents, teachers and Learning Leaders all have important roles to support student learning through homework.

The student planner is a direct and simple method for Learning Leaders and teachers to help students to plan study and homework timetables.

Recommended Middle School homework commitment: at least 60 minutes of study and/or homework per day.

BOOKS/CLASS SETS/EBOOKS

Class sets are provided from program charges paid by parents. Some faculties require students to purchase books individually and this information is indicated on the annual Booklist. Purchase of books/eBooks is essential, as they are often the main resource for the subject.

Second-hand books are often available from Lilydale Books (9739 6186).

PARENT PAYMENTS

To offer practical and selected subjects, the College Council must be sure that the course of study is financially viable. Therefore the College requires that payment for practical and selected subjects, or a payment schedule that has been arranged with the Business Manager, be finalised before the commencement of the school year.

LEARNING AND RESOURCE CENTRE (LRC)

The focus of the LRC is on research, reading and eLearning. A comprehensive collection of books and other print material supports the research and reading needs of students. Promotion of and access to extensive eLearning and digital resources extends students and prompts independent learning.

COMMUNICATION WITH PARENTS

The 'News & Events' section of the College website (<u>www.lilydaleheights.vic.edu.au</u>) contains regular blog posts that keep parents up to date with current information, news, items of interest, student achievements and upcoming College events and activities.

The College newsletter (**The Heights**) is published monthly and compiles important posts from our website as well as community notices. You can access the newsletter via the 'News & Events' section of the website or email <u>newsletter@lilydaleheights.vic.edu.au</u> to join the distribution list. We ask that all parents read our blog and newsletter to stay updated with school news.

Parents are also encouraged to regularly access the 'Parent Portal' through the College website. Through this Portal parents can view news, information on student attendance and completion of learning tasks, and students' semester reports. Parents can also send email to teachers through the Portal. Please contact College reception for assistance in accessing the Parent Portal if required.

CAREERS/WORK EXPERIENCE

A Careers Coordinator provides information and assistance with careers, courses and employment advice. Extensive resources are available for students and parents.

Work Experience and work placements are coordinated between employers, students and the Department of Education (DET) to ensure that all requirements are met.

MANAGED INDIVIDUAL PATHWAYS

Every student 15 years and over is counselled and creates an individual pathway reflecting goals and aspirations. This is reviewed with students and developed between Years 9 and 12.

SATISFACTORY COMPLETION OF THE MIDDLE SCHOOL PROGRAM

To satisfactorily complete Middle School and to be ready for Senior School, students are expected to:

- Maintain at least a 90% attendance rate;
- Demonstrate appropriate work habits;
- Complete all Common Assessment Tasks to an acceptable standard;
- Demonstrate development of their learning capacity and their readiness to participate successfully in the following year.

The following pages outline the subject selection process and available subjects.

Please read each subject outline carefully to ensure that you understand the content.

Base choices on YOUR present strengths/abilities and future needs

Have an EDUCATIONAL reason for choosing a study. Do not choose a group of friends, choose a group of STUDIES.

Consult with subject teachers for further information on specific subjects and with the Middle School Learning Leader and the Curriculum Leader about the structure of your overall course.

ENGLISH AS AN ADDITIONAL LANGUAGE (EAL)

Lilydale Heights College has an EAL program at Middle School to assist international students and other students with a language background other than English to develop their English-language skills and successfully access the curriculum across their subjects. This program is led by the College's EAL Coordinator.

STUDENT ENGAGEMENT IN LEARNING FOR THE FUTURE (SELF)

Student Engagement in Learning for the Future (SELF) has been designed to engage our students in their own learning and to foster Excellence, Respect and Responsibility in their lives as College students and as global citizens. All SELF classes have a specific learning focus for the year and have common themes. In Year 9, the theme is Focus: Community and Social Justice. Students learn about effective leadership and how leaders can implement change. They develop communication skills and the ability to work both independently and as part of a team. SELF classes address a range of topics including cyber safety, learning goals, and study skills.

SELECTION PROCESS FOR MIDDLE SCHOOL

Key information

- Each semester, students will study English, Mathematics, Science, Humanities and SELF, as well as two electives
- Students should complete at least one elective subject in each year of Middle School from the following Faculty areas over the year: Health & Physical Education; Technology; and The Arts
- All elective units run for one semester except for Japanese, which will run for the entire year
- Students can choose additional units based on their interests and potential future pathways

MIDDLE SCHOOL SELECTION - STEP BY STEP

- **Read the subject descriptions in the following pages**
- Attend the information evening Wednesday 19 July
- Enter your selections online from Thursday 20 July via the weblink provided by the College
- Participate in a course counselling session at your allocated time between Monday 7 to Tuesday 8 August to confirm your selections
- After Course Counselling, your selections must be signed by a parent/guardian and submitted as a Progression Task in your SELF class by Wednesday 9 August

NOTE: Student selections will not be accepted unless SIGNED by Parents/Guardians.

COMPLETED AND SIGNED STUDENT SELECTIONS MUST BE SUBMITTED BY WEDNESDAY 10 AUGUST

ENGLISH

YEAR 9 ENGLISH (COMPULSORY SUBJECT EXCEPT FOR EAL STUDENTS)

In Year 9 English, you will study a range of classic and contemporary texts as you learn to read and write about yourself, your communities, and the world in which you live. You will develop your own writing style, the ability to express and present your ideas, as well as learning to analyse and justify interpretations of texts. Through the exploration of issues that are experienced by people the world over, you will create text to self, text to text, and text to world connections in Year 9 English.

At Year 9, English is comprised of the following units of work:

- Creative Writing: This unit focusses on creating your own narrative in the contextual boundaries of a set text. You will develop your own writing style by experimenting with language features, stylistic devices, text structures and images.
- Writing to Persuade: You will present your perspective on an issue of importance to you through the development of researched, cohesive, and logical arguments before presenting your opinion to an audience.
- Text Response: You will read, discuss, and analyse novels from authors who give a voice to minority groups.
- Language Analysis: You will analyse various forms of non-fiction print and non-print media for viewpoint, language, and purpose.

YEAR 9 ENGLISH AS AN ADDITIONAL LANGUAGE (EAL)

Year 9 EAL is for students from a language background other than English. It focuses on developing students' skills in understanding and using English when speaking, listening, reading, and writing. This subject helps improve students' English ability, which also helps them to perform better in other subjects.

Year 9 EAL focuses on the following units of work:

- Creative Writing: You will read a range of short stories, developing your own writing style.
- Writing to Persuade: You will learn how to present your opinion on an issue in various forms.
- Text Response: You will read, view, discuss, and analyse both novel and film texts.
- Argument and Language Analysis: You will analyse a range of non-fiction print and non-print media, such as opinion pieces on a newspaper, speeches, news bulletins, for viewpoint, language, and purpose.

MATHEMATICS

YEAR 9 MATHEMATICS (COMPULSORY SUBJECT)

In Year 9 Mathematics students will develop familiarity with a range of non-linear and linear functions and relations, and related algebra and graphs. They will apply index laws and use indices to express very large and very small numbers in scientific notation. Students will solve problems involving direct proportion, rates, and simple interest. They will apply coordinate geometry to find the distance between two points in the Cartesian plane, and the midpoint and gradient of a line segment joining two points. Students will graph linear relations and solve linear equations. They will also graph simple non-linear relations.

In the areas of Measurement and Geometry, students will investigate problems involving areas of composite shapes and the surface area and volumes of right prisms and cylinders. They will use similarity, enlarge-ment transformations and apply geometric reasoning to solve problems involving ratio and scale factors. They will use Pythagoras' theorem and trigonometry ratios to solve problems involving right-angled triangles.

In their Probability and Statistics units, students will list outcomes for two-step experiments involving selections with and without replacement. They will use Venn diagrams and two-way tables to calculate probabilities and relative frequencies from collected or given data. They will identify issues and questions involving categorical and numerical data, use back-to-back stem-plots and histograms to describe and compare the distribution of data in terms of location (centre), spread and symmetry or skew.

HEALTH & PHYSICAL EDUCATION

HIGH PERFORMANCE

In High Performance, students will develop the skills necessary to be leaders in all aspects of their lives. They will develop an understanding of important leadership roles in sport and the great outdoors, as well as develop strategies to be compassionate but assertive friends and family members. Students will understand what risk-taking behaviour looks like, and how to manage and assess risk, while developing strategies to make healthy choices in multiple aspects of their lives.

This subject includes the following units:

- Unit 1: Lifetime leaders Develop an understanding of Leaders, role models and high performance culture in the health, fitness and sport industry, and discover how this translates to your everyday life.
- Unit 2: Making good decisions Learn how to develop decision-making processes in sports and in real-life situations. Use what you learn to develop winning habits, and use technology to track your health

MIND, BODY AND SOUL

In Mind, Body and Soul, students will begin a journey to find their best selves. Students will investigate the links between Physical activity, outdoor environments, and improved health outcomes. Students will develop an understanding of community health with a sense of altruism and investigate and evaluate strategies to help them manage their wholistic health.

This subject includes the following units:

- Unit 1: Expanding your horizons Explore the links between Physical Activity and Health, and strategies you can use to use improve your own Health. Participate in a wide variety of outdoor and indoor health experiences, and decide what makes you tick.
- Unit 2: Create your own realty You will develop a plan to improve your overall health. You will tack your progress using various forms of technology, whilst learning to make positive choices that result in improved health outcomes for you.

HUMANITIES

YEAR 9 HUMANITIES (COMPULSORY SUBJECT)

Year 9 Humanities is comprised of a study of History, Geography, Civics and Citizenship and Economics. At various points throughout the year, it will also have connections with year 9 Science. Students will explore Australian history from the landing of the First Fleet through to World War One. There is also a strong focus on First Nations history and land management prior to the arrival of the First Fleet and sustainability.

At Year 9, Humanities is comprised of the following units of work:

- Settlers or Invaders? A focus on the colonization of Australia and its effect on First Nation Australians
- Becoming 'Australia': Change in the country from Federation through to the first World War.
- First Nations Land Management
- Climate Change
- Consumer and Financial Literacy

SCIENCE

YEAR 9 SCIENCE (COMPULSORY SUBJECT)

Year 9 science focuses on the strands Physics, Chemistry, Biology, Earth Science and Astronomy. At various points throughout the year, it will also have connections with Year 9 Humanities. Students will explore how science is integrated in the world around them and how they can use their knowledge to make a positive contribution to their world.

At Year 9, Science is comprised of the following units of work:

- Electricity
- Chemical reactions
- Ecosystems & climate change
- Astronomy & space exploration

LANGUAGE & CULTURE

JAPANESE

If you would like to learn to speak Japanese, learn more about an exciting country and culture, study, travel or live in Japan, improve employability and be a global citizen, then Japanese is for you.

This subject provides an opportunity to enhance your communication skills. You will continue to develop skills to communicate in Japanese and gain deeper insight into Japanese culture and customs. This is a year-long subject that allows students to build on existing language skills to be able to communicate in Japanese. For entry into this subject in Year 10, students must have studied Japanese in Year 9.

Studying Japanese will help students develop the following skills:

- Critical and creative thinking
- Promote personal and social capabilities
- Intercultural capability
- Literacy and numeracy

Topics Studied in Year 9 Japanese

Unit 1: Weekends (Asking and telling the time, discussing weekend activities, extending invitations)

Unit 2: Moving House (Describing the location of someone/something, listing items in your home)

Unit 3: My School (School subjects, discussing events, discussing who or what is the most....)

Unit 4: Seasons (Discussing seasonal activities, describing and predicting weather, discussing temperature)

ASIAN POP CULTURE

Get ready to explore the world of pop culture from Asian countries!

Asian Pop Culture examines topics ranging from music, anime, manga, fashion, cosplay, technology (e.g. AI and Tech Consumer Products) and gaming. Students analyse an array of texts; including news articles, vlogs, music videos, manga and anime.

Asian Pop Culture will help students to develop skills in the areas of:

- Critical and creative thinking
- Intercultural capability
- Literacy and numeracy

TECHNOLOGY

COOL FOOD/HEALTHY BODY

This unit looks at the importance of planning and consuming healthy meals for optimal health. There is an emphasis on modifying popular family meals to make them healthier, and students are encouraged to work independently as they design, modify and produce a range of meals. We use the Australian Guide to Healthy Eating food model to guide our planning and food choices.

There is a materials charge for this unit of \$110. This unit prepares students for a range of pathways including VCE Food Studies.

Focus:

Basic food-handling and preparation skills; nutrition knowledge and cultural awareness.

DESIGNING IN FIBRES AND FABRICS

Students will complete a range of projects using fabrics and fibres creatively. Learning will be shaped by following the technology process of investigating, designing, producing and evaluating. Skills will be acquired for the competent use of a domestic sewing machine and exposure to a variety of construction processes and surface decoration techniques.

Focus:

Design and construction of pyjama pants; an appliqued polar fleece blanket, and a tie-dyed t-shirt.

**Please note that due to planned Building Works for E Wing curriculum may adapted. The College will ensure that curriculum standards are addressed to ensure that all students can progress in the area of Technology.

ELECTRONICS AND MECHANICS

Students will gain an understanding of the theory and application of electric circuits, the concepts of PCB design and digital radio and Bluetooth communication. They will construct finished products such as an DAB Radio receiver and a LED signal power meter. This unit provides the opportunity for students to gain first-hand experience in the use of electronics in industry and prepares students for a range of pathways including Year 10 Electronics and then VCE Product Design and Technology.

Skills that students will develop include:

- Soldering
- Circuit board layout
- Circuit board design and construction

PROGRAMMING AND COMPUTING

This unit covers the fundamentals of computer programming, graphics and data analysis, and is customised to each student's current skill level. Students will learn to code on both scripted and visual web development platforms that introduce each concept in an easy-to-understand manner.

Two projects are undertaken by students individually. This will involve students controlling a milling machine and designing and developing a functioning and interactive website. Students will use computational thinking techniques to define and solve problems in terms of their requirements. Students will also investigate more broad areas of computing including webpages, privacy, and the application of spreadsheets at a more advanced level.

This unit builds on skills students have developed in Year 8 Coding classes and prepares students for a range of pathways including Year 10 and VCE Computing.

SKATEBOARD AND TABLES

This unit requires the design and construction of a skateboard which will incorporate the elements of material research, processing materials, art design and quality finish. Uses include street/park skating, wall hanging with coat hooks or just for individualistic design display. A table will also be created allowing students to choose their own design and ensuring their skills will be developed in planning, research and joining techniques. This unit prepares students for a range of pathways including VCE Product Design and Technology.

**Please note that due to planned Building Works for E Wing curriculum may adapted. The College will ensure that curriculum standards are addressed to ensure that all students can progress in the area of Technology.

THE ARTS

MEDIA STUDIES

Media Studies affords students the chance to learn more about the media that they interact with every day. This subject has two core components: exploring the messages and representations within existing media texts, and creating original media productions.

Students will explore film as a media form and will analyse texts for representations and genre. During production students will plan, design and create media texts, both independently and in collaborative groups.

The subject focuses on the following units of work:

- Genre and Representation: Exploring media codes and conventions for film and how they create genre. This includes film analysis and genre based character design.
- Recut Trailers: A practical demonstration of genre manipulation through recutting a film trailer. This includes sourcing media and developing practical skills using video editing software.
- Short Film Production: An insight into how short films are created from the inception of an idea through to a premiere on the big screen. This includes students creating their own short film.

MUSIC PERFORMANCE AND INVESTIGATION

In Year 9, Music extends skills of all students using a practical, hands-on experience. The subject uses current industry-standard technology to create and edit their own music, using Pro Tools and/or Garage Band. Students will play a range of instruments and will form bands within the classroom. Students will work in groups on their chosen instruments and will be directed on how to play music in class and in public. These performances will be based on contemporary styles. Prior music experience is not a necessity. Music in Year 9 and Year 10, is a hands-on subject with fun and experimentation being a priority.

This unit prepares students for a range of pathways including VET Music Industry (Music Performance).

ART

This subject encourages students to develop their artistic skills across a variety of art forms such as drawing, painting, printmaking and mixed media. The focus is on the specific techniques of how the art is created across the exploration of these art forms.

The documentation of this will be explored through trials and experiments, reference notes and critical/reflective annotations. Critical thinking and reflection are strong components of this art course that illustrate and convey how a technique is done or how it can be manipulated to create a desired aesthetic.

Art movements, styles and individual artists are explored through written analysis to identify how artists communicate ideas and meanings through their manipulation of art elements and principles as well as exploring the historical and cultural contexts that have influenced art making over the years.

DEVELOPING DRAMA

Utilising the skills and knowledge developed in year 8 Drama, students focus their attentions on devising pieces of work from scratch based on stimulus and information provided. Over the course of the semester, students will explore:

- The application of Theatrical/Dramatic Styles such as Greek Theatre, Elizabethan, Commedia dell'Arte, Epic Theatre, Theatre of the Absurd and Realism
- The use of acting, direction and design stagecraft
- The nature of how to analyse a piece of theatre (live or pre-recorded)
- How to create pieces of theatre without a script, using conventions of Drama and acting skills
- Developing character through Expressive Skills (facial expressions, movement, gesture, voice) and research.
- Group and solo work

VISUAL COMMUNICATION DESIGN

In Visual Communication Design students will explore how visual language is used to communicate ideas and messages. Students will refine their skills in responding to a set brief and the importance of fulfilling set criteria. Students will learn both manual and digital presentation methods and drawing conventions. Students will also refine their documentation and annotation skills using a visual diary. This unit prepares students for a range of pathways including VCE Visual Communication Design.

Students will explore:

- How can we use visual language to communicate?
- How can I use the design process to create a design through both traditional and digital methods and media?
- How can I create a design around technical drawing application?